
1 
 

INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
August 24, 2022 @ 7:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers, Newtown Municipal Center 
3 Primrose Street, Newtown CT 

 
These Minutes are subject to approval by the Inland Wetland Commission 

 
Present:  Craig Ferris, Mike McCabe, Suzanne Guidera, Scott Jackson, Stephanie Kurose 
 
Staff Present:  Steve Maguire, Senior Land Use Enforcement Officer, Kiana Maisonet, Land Use 
Enforcement Officer, Dawn Fried, Clerk 
 
Mr. Ferris opened the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
IW Application #22‐14 by Farrell Building Company, property located at 90 Mt. Pleasant Road, to 
construct 11 Garden Apartment buildings, one clubhouse, and associated site improvements including 
driveways, parking and stormwater management. 
 
Mr. McCabe read the legal notice for the record. 
 
Mr. Ferris gave an overview of the Public Hearing process.   
 
The Commission had a discussion regarding the process of accepting an Intervenor Petition.  Mr. Ferris 
explained that he was unaware of the process at the last IWC meeting.  Ms. Guidera stated there are 
no specific factual allegations that lead her to believe that the standards are met under the CT General 
Statutes.  Mr. McCabe stated perhaps he would have voted differently at the last meeting had he been 
more aware of the process.  The Commission agreed to vote after the applicant gives their 
presentation.  
 
Attorney Robert Hall, 43 Main Street, Newtown, represented the applicant.  Atty. Hall introduced the 
following:  Paul Dumont, Design Manager, JMC LLC, Armonk, NY, Rick Bohlander, P.E., Senior Designer, 
JMC LLC, James McManus, CPSS, JMM Wetland Consulting Services, LLC, Newtown, CT, Anthony 
Nester, Associate Principal, JMC LLC, Greg Pancost, Senior Project Manager, Farrell Building Company, 
Newburgh, NY. 
 
Atty. Hall appreciated the Commissioners giving consideration to the acceptance of the Intervenors.  
Atty. Hall discussed a letter he submitted for the record.  The letter served as a brief outline of the law.  
See attached document.   
 
Mr. Dumont stated they made revisions to the plan based on comments from members of the public 
and the Commission.  Please see attached documents titled, “Responses to Comments received during 



2 
 

the July 27th Hearing”, dated August 19, 2022 and “Newtown Commons Stormwater Facilities 
Maintenance Program”, dated received August 19, 2022. 
 
Mr. Ferris asked what percentage of flow will go to the detention basin.  Mr. Bohlander clarified it was 
an infiltration basin and stated approximately 50% of flow from the site will go through the infiltration 
basin. 
 
Mr. Ferris asked if the applicant was comfortable with the infiltration of the existing soils.  Mr. Dumont 
stated they performed tests on the site and were able to determine the soil types were suitable for 
infiltration. 
 
Mr. McCabe questioned whether the rate of water coming onto the site has changed since the first 
proposal.   Mr. Bohlander stated they installed conveyance systems to maintain the best peak rates 
and volumes. 
 
Mr. McCabe asked how the discharge between the buildings is being treated.  Mr. Bohlander 
responded off‐site drainage goes through a swale, then through a riparian buffer, which treats the 
water, then continues to the catch basin which flows back into the wetland.   
 
Ms. Guidera noted the public had raised concerns that the water being discharged into the wetlands 
could be contaminated by oil runoff.  Mr. Guidera asked whether contaminants will discharge directly 
into the wetlands.  Mr. Dumont responded: each area will be treated, the bio detention systems and 
the water quality treatment will follow CT state standards, and the infiltration basins and the 
hydrodynamic separator will collect the hydra‐carbons and floatables. 
 
Ms. Guidera noted the applicant submitted a stormwater maintenance program.  Ms. Guidera asked if 
the program will be in effect indefinitely and will it be adopted by future owners.  Mr. Dumont stated it 
will be regulated with the Town and CT DEEP.   Mr. Hall stated the Commission can also add a 
“continued maintenance plan” as a condition to the approval.  
 
Mr. Hall introduced Mr. Pancost , representative of Farrell Building Company.  Mr. Pancost stated 
Farrell has a lot of experience with multi‐family developments, most recently Riverwalk in Sandy Hook.  
Mr. Pancost explained that Farrell is the owner, “end‐user” and property manager for all of their 
properties.  The property management team operates the facilities and runs the properties.  Mr. 
Pancost also stated that Farrell is very experienced in the stormwater treatment facilities, long term 
stormwater maintenance, and the sediment and erosion control phase, which will be maintained 
throughout construction. 
 
Mr. Ferris asked Mr. MacManus if he was comfortable with the stormwater plan and the effects the 
stormwater impact will have downstream.  Mr. McManus stated he has no concerns and is 
comfortable with the stormwater plan.  Mr. Ferris noted the regulations refer to offsite impacts and 
asked Mr. McManus again if he was comfortable with the protection of this wetland.  Mr. McManus 
responded “yes”. 
 
Mr. Hall pointed out a contradiction in Mr. Klein’s report regarding the critical habitat 



3 
 

 
Ms. Kurose asked whether an invasive management plan will be in place to remove the invasives and 
improve the area.  Mr. Dumont stated yes they did consider.  Mr. McManus stated the old pasture is 
choked with invasives. 
 
Mr. Maguire was happy to see improved revisions from the 2018 plans.  He stated there is better 
connectivity between the basins and wetlands. 
 
PUBLIC 
 
Patrick Napolitano, Intervenor, 13 Whippoorwill Hill Road – Please see attached letter. 
 
Mr. Napolitano asked the following questions: 
Do the new maps include the small wetland area?  Response:  Yes  
How much of the facility will not be covered by the ground water systems.  Response:  The entire site 
will be covered. 
Will the porous pavement cover 100% of the complex? Response:  Only specific areas. 
What will ensure the maintenance plan be followed?  
 
Mr. Napolitano read the report titled “Newtown Commons Stormwater Control Facilities Maintenance 
Program” attached.  Mr. Napolitano doubts the maintenance schedule will be followed and pointed 
out that there are no regulations to enforce the maintenance plan. 
 
Mr. Ferris asked Mr. Maguire if there are procedures in place in case wetlands are destroyed.   
Mr. Maguire responded we can condition the plan and we can regulate the wetlands but the long term 
maintenance is on the property owner.  
 
Mark D’Amico, 7 Tory Lane – Please see attached letter. 
 
Mr. Jackson asked what the history of maintaining the properties was.  Mr. Pancost stated they “carry 
out” all storm water management plans on the properties and the properties are clean and very well 
kept.  Mr. Jackson asked if there are any outstanding violations on any of the Farrell properties.  Mr. 
Pacost stated no. 
 
Ms. Guidera asked Mr. McManus to give an overview of his background.   
 
Ms. Guidera outlined Inland Wetland Regulations 10.2, Considerations for Decision, Criteria for 
Decision.  See attached.  

 a. Environmental impact.  Mr. McManus read the conclusion of his report (see attached).   
Mr. McManus stated no adverse impacts to the wetlands. 

 b. Applicant’s alternatives.  Mr. McManus made reference to the 2018 application which had 
more disturbed wetlands.   

 c. Relationship to short term and long term impacts.  Mr. McManus stated he “just went 
through the indirect impact discussion”. 



4 
 

 d. Irreversible and irretrievable loss of wetlands.  Ms. Guidera pointed out this subject matter 
was Mr. Napolitano’s chief concern.   Mr. McManus confirmed no irreversible or irretrievable 
loss of wetlands. 

 e. The character of the property threatened by regulated activity.  Mr. McManus stated you 
should be able to enjoy the property and enjoy the neighboring properties.   

 f. Impacts of wetland activity outside the regulated area.  Mr. McManus stated he “touched on 
that subject earlier”.  
 

Mr. Hall stated he located a section in the Inland Wetland Regulations under Enforcement which reads 
that fines and consequences can be issued for not complying with agreed terms and conditions. 
 
Ms. Guidera requested a proposal in writing regarding the removal of the invasives.  Mr. Guidera 
believes it will improve the functionality of the wetland.  Mr. Hall asked the Commission whether the 
plan could be a condition of approval.  The Commission was agreeable to the plan being a condition 
which Staff will approve. 
 
Mr. Ferris noted that Mark D’Amico’s Intervenor Petition did not meet set requirements.  Mr. Hall read 
Section 22a‐19 et seq., Subsection A2, of the CT General Statutes.   Mr. McCabe moved to deny Mark 
D’Amico as an Intervenor.  Ms. Guidera seconded.  All in favor.  The motion passed 5 to 0 in favor of 
denying Mark D’Amico as an Intervenor. 
 
Ms. Guidera moved to close the Public Hearing.  Ms. Kurose seconded.  All in favor.  The Public Hearing 
is CLOSED for IW Application #22‐14 by Farrell Building Company. 
 
IW Application #22‐14 by Farrell Building Company will be CONTINUED to the next scheduled IWC 
Meeting on September 14, 2022 at 7:30 pm in the Municipal Center, Council Chambers, 3 Primrose 
Street, Newtown, CT. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
Regular Meeting of July 27, 2022 
 
Page 4, Paragraph 10, add “pocket” in front of “wetland”.  Mr. McCabe moved to accept the amended 
minutes from July 27, 2022.  Mr. Jackson seconded.  All in favor.  Ms. Kurose abstained.  The minutes 
from July 27, 2022 were approved.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Maguire introduced Kiana Maisonet, the newly hired Enforcement Officer in the Land Use Agency.  
The Commissioners welcomed Ms. Maisonet.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
With no additional business, Mr. Jackson moved to adjourn.  Ms. Guidera seconded.  All in favor.  The  
Regular IWC Meeting of August 24, 2022 was adjourned at 9:05 pm.  
Respectfully Submitted, Dawn Fried 












































	IW Minutes Meeting 8-24-22
	IW Minutes Attachments 8-24-22

